
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 21 Hydref 2021 

 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon yn cael ei gynnal 
trwy Microsoft Teams ar  Dydd Mercher, 27ain Hydref, 2021 am 11.00 am. i ystyried materion a 
gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid 
rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar 
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
  

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
 

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
 
3  Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a 

gynhaliwyd ar 27 Ionawr 2021.  
1 - 4 

 
4  Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon - Adroddiad Diweddaru.  

5 - 12 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, L. Phipps, J. Pritchard, Mrs E. Stenner, A. Whitcombe a 
R. Whiting,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.  Am wybodaeth 
bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Llawn ar 
ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 
 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE  
 

MINUTES OF THE REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
ON WEDNESDAY, 27TH JANUARY 2021 AT 11:00AM 

 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor P. Marsden – Chair 
 

Councillors: 
 

S. Cook (Social Care), N. George (Waste and Public Protection), C. Gordon (Corporate 
Services), S. Morgan (Economy and Enterprise), L. Phipps (Homes and Places), J. Ridgewell 
(Environment and Infrastructure), E. Stenner (Performance and Customer Services) and R. 
Whiting (Learning and Achievement). 

 
 

Together with: 
 

 C. Harrhy (Chief Executive), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director – Education and Corporate 
Services), D. Street (Corporate Director – Social Services and Housing) and M.S. Williams 
(Interim Corporate Director – Communities). 

 
Also in attendance: 

 
  A. Bolter (Visitor Economy and Destinations Manager), R. Kyte (Head of Regeneration and 

Planning), S. Harris (Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer), R. Tranter (Head of Legal 
Services and Monitoring Officer) and C. Evans (Committee Services Officer). 

 
 

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed but would not be live 
streamed, however a recording would be available following the meeting via the Council’s 
website – Click Here To View.  She advised that decisions would be made by Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of the 

meeting. 
 
 
 
3. CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE MINUTES – 29TH 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings?lang=en-GB


JANUARY 2020   
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 29th January 2020 be approved and 
signed as a correct record. 
 
 

4. BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
2019/2020 

 
 The report advised Cabinet as Trustees of the Blackwood Miners’ Institute (BMI) of the 

operational activities and financial position of Blackwood Miners’ Institute for the financial year 
ending 31st March 2020. 

 

It was noted that Blackwood Miners’ Institute was conveyed as a charitable trust to Islwyn 
Borough Council, (and subsequently to Caerphilly County Borough Council), and was registered 
as a charity on 13th November 1990. 
 
The local authority, acting as sole corporate trustee has a legal duty to operate the charity in 
accordance with the governing document and has a legal obligation to account for the charity’s 
finances in accordance with the Charity Act 2011. 
 
A report to Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute was considered on the 27th July 
2016 advising Members of the statutory requirements relating to the charitable status of  
Blackwood Miners’ Institute, including a set of recommendations to ensure compliance with 
charity law in relation to the submission of annual reports and financial statements, the ongoing 
management of the Blackwood Miners’ Institute and the Council’s and Cabinet’s responsibilities 
as Trustees. 
 
The annual report and audited statement of accounts for 2019/2020 were included as an 
appendix to the report. 
 
Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute (BMI) were required to consider the accounts 
prior to the annual report and accounts being submitted to the Charity Commission as part of the 
annual return, in compliance with the requirements of the Charity Act 2011. 

 
 Cabinet thanked the Officers for the report and discussion ensued. 
 

It was noted that as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic, many of the events and 
performances have been cancelled and the Blackwood Miners’ institute temporarily closed, and 
staff redeployed to other duties, therefore the updates are limited.  Discussions took place around 
the plans for reopening and the plans for broadening the attendees, as well as increasing 
attendance.  Officers explained that there are plans in place for the re-opening, not just of this 
venue but of other key attractions, which are detailed within the Roadmap to Tourism Recovery 
Plan.  A marketing plan has also been devised, for the tourism venues and other attractions but 
due to the closure of the sector, it has not been possible to conduct market research with users of 
the venue.  However, it is hoped that late summer to early autumn, recovery plans can be 
implemented and some events, even outdoor can take place.  Officers explained however that 
this will all be subject to government guidelines and lockdown regulations, the unlocking of which 
are uncertain at present. 

 
 Discussions took place around financial assistance and it was noted that the venue has been 

awarded the Welsh Government lockdown grants and was also able to secure funding from the 
Arts Council Wales.  A further letter has been received, and subject to review, it is hoped that 
further funding will be available from the Arts Council Wales for the coming year.  Cabinet were 
also asked to note that the team work very hard to secure additional grant funding from a variety 
of sources for a number of events such as community projects.  

 

Page 2



Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that, the recommendation in 
the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 

  RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officers Report the content of the  
  Annual Report and audited Statement of Accounts for Blackwood Miners’ Institute for  
  financial year 2019/2020 be accepted. 

 
 
The meeting closed at 11.19am. 

 
____________________ 

CHAIR 

 

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



 
 
 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ 
INSTITUTE – 27TH OCTOBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT:  BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE UPDATE REPORT 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND 

ENVIRONMENT 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide Cabinet as Trustee a progress report on the operational activity at BMI, 

and to outline the proposal to set up an Advisory Group for Blackwood Miners’ 
Institute.   

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Blackwood Miners’ Institute has remained closed due to COVID-19 restrictions.  

Income and artistic output have been severely impacted due to this, however, 
Blackwood Miners’ Institute reopened in September with a reduced season to allow for 
flexibility and enhanced cleaning. Changes in legislation will be monitored closely and 
any adjustments will be actioned appropriately. 

 
2.2 The report will also outline research that has been undertaken in respect of the creation 

of an Advisory Group for the BMI and provides a recommendation on how to proceed. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet as Trustee consider, note and endorse the contents of 

this report. 
 
3.2  It is recommended that Cabinet as Trustee approve the establishment of an Advisory 

Group. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 This report is intended to keep Cabinet as Trustees aware of operations within 

Blackwood Miners’ Institute. 
 
4.2 The creation of an Advisory Group would assist with the growth of Blackwood Miners’ 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



Institute. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
 Ongoing Impact of Covid on operational issues 
 
5.1 Due to government legislation, Blackwood Miners’ Institute has remained closed for 

performances.  As regulations began to ease BMI could have reopened for 
performances, however, the decision was taken that it wouldn’t be financially viable 
to stage performances without a full capacity audience.   

 
5.2 However, some regular dance classes were welcomed back prior to the summer 

holidays.  Capacity was limited and the classes were relocated to the auditorium to 
allow maximum capacity whilst still retaining social distancing.  Classes have again 
returned after the Summer holidays and are now using the dance studio and lower 
bar spaces. 

 
5.3 Staff continue to predominantly work from home, although there has been some 

return to the office.  A return to face to face working, albeit limited, has been very 
important for staff’s wellbeing and motivation. 

 
5.4 In order to welcome back audiences safely, as well as keep front line staff safe, the 

BMI has implemented several measures.  These include: 

 The use of face-coverings in indoors areas for staff and members of the 
public.  

 A one-way system around the building. 

 Increased cleaning regime. 

 Contact free ticket sales and checking. 

 Hand sanitiser provided throughout the building for use by staff and the 
public. 

These measures will be reviewed and evaluated throughout the autumn season.  
BMI management will monitor changes in legislation closely and will adapt safety 
measures and risk assessments accordingly. 

 
 Financial Impact of Covid 
 
5.5 Table 1 compares the current Income and expenditure forecasts for 2020-21 with the 

original budget forecast at the start of the financial year. The final column indicates 
the difference between these two forecasts and the final row shows the impact on the 
Council’s contribution required to balance the budget, i.e. the subsidy. 

 
 Table 1: Income and expenditure forecasts 2020-21 
 

 Original Budget 
Forecast (£) 

Forecast as at 
10/09/21 (£) 

Difference (£) 

Income 483,248 336,274 -146,974 

Expenditure 789,203 654,289 -134,914 

CCBC subsidy 305,955 318,015 12,060 

 
5.6 BMI has not benefitted from any NDR or loss of income grants this financial year, 

despite 5 months of lost income.  The autumn season will be a lighter, more flexible 
season; however, it will not generate the income either from ticket sales or secondary 
spend, that a fuller programme of events would. 

Page 6



 
 
 Staffing changes 
  
5.7 The Theatre and Arts Services Manager is leaving the authority on 15th October 

2021.  The job advert for a replacement Manager has already been placed with 
interviews due to take place mid-October.  The aim is to minimise the disruption to 
the organisation during this transition. 

 
5.8 The Sales and Audience Development Manager also left BMI at the end of 

September.  This is a vital role for Blackwood Miners’ Institute and will be filled as 
soon as possible; however, the change of personnel is an opportunity to review the 
role, and its place within the Destinations portfolio. In the interim, freelance Marketing 
staff will be used to assist BMI. 

 
 Local Members 
 
5.9 Officers at the Blackwood Miners’ Institute are developing a strong working 

relationship with local members.  The management at BMI will continue to have 
regular meetings with local members and town councillors, the first of which took 
place on the 21st July 2021.  These meetings will provide updates on BMI activity and 
explore opportunities for joint working. 
 
Artistic Activity 

 
5.10 BMI has continued to work with various partners during the pandemic to produce 

artistic output in a variety of mediums.   
  

 Digital tours. BMI hosted and supported three digital tours in the last 12 
months; Winners was an audio play produced by Nova Theatre.  First 3 Drops 
by Taking Flight Theatre Company was a school and family performance that 
integrated captioning, BSL and audio description.  Buttons Undone by 
Rainbow Valley Productions was an online performance of the ever-popular 
adult panto from Owen Money’s production company.   

 The Anarchists Mobile Library produced by Tessa Bide Productions, was a 
bilingual digital ‘choose your own adventure’ production aimed at children 
aged 6+.  The production ‘toured’ throughout Wales, supported by Blackwood 
Miners’ Institute, Pontardawe Arts Centre and Carmarthen Theatres. 

 Social media Christmas content. BMI commissioned a local storyteller to 
record three festive short stories in Welsh and English.  These were put out 
on Facebook and Twitter.  In conjunction with Blackrat Productions, BMI also 
recorded a special version of The Night Before Christmas featuring many of 
the actors that BMI has worked with over the years. 

 Doorstep Craft Packs. Head 4 Arts delivered 295 panto packs to families 
throughout the Caerphilly County Borough. 

 Drive in Panto. BMI worked with Rainbow Valley Productions to put on a 
drive-in performance of Peter Pan.  7 performances were planned for 
Christmas week however, only one of those performances took place due to 
Wales going to Alert level 4. 

 Love Locks. At the beginning of 2021 BMI partnered with NoNaff Arts to 
create a community project to bring the community together and keep BMI 
fresh in audience’s minds.  The Love Locks project saw members of the 
community decorate padlocks.  These have been added to a structure that 
has been erected in Blackwood Town Centre.  The community engagement 

Page 7



was huge; 400 packs were issued, with even more requested.  The number of 
locks had to be limited because of the weight limit on the final structure, but 
BMI and NoNaff Arts are discussing reproducing the project in Risca and 
Bargoed. 

 Trwbwl Mawr yn Trymyglyd. BMI has supported the first phase R&D of a 
new Welsh language script.  The R&D week in July was the first artistic 
activity that had taken place at BMI since the closure in March 2020.  The 
script is now being redrafted, with another R&D planned for 2021. 

 The Great Adventures of Olive and Eira. BMI commissioned Flossy and 
Boo to create an audio trail around Parc Cwm Darran throughout August.  
Families used QR codes to follow the story and take part in tasks around the 
park, and there was an activity pack available.  

 
 
 Advisory Group 
  
5.11 Following the conclusion that independent Board members could not be recruited 

onto the board of trustees, research has continued into the feasibility of an Advisory 
Group. 

 
5.12 The research has focused on the model used at Aberystwyth Arts Centre (AAC) 

which has an Advisory Group that has no legal influence but acts as support, 
advocate and critical friend.   

 
5.13 With Cabinet as Trustees approval the BMI propose to replicate the AAC’s Advisory 

Group model.  Open recruitment would take place to recruit 8 independent members, 
although particular focus would be placed on diversity (diversity is not limited to the 
protected characteristics; it also includes diversity in language, and diversity in 
socioeconomic background).  The purpose of the board is to gather members with 
particular expertise to support the growth of BMI, therefore experts in disabled and 
d/Deaf access, Welsh speaking members and experts in diversity would be sought, 
as well as members of the local community, and local artists.  In addition to recruited 
members, there would also be a representative of BMI management, the Visitor 
Economy and Destinations Manager, and the Cabinet Member for Customer, 
Performance and Enterprise in the group. The ACW lead officer should also be 
included. 

 
5.14 Each meeting would have the following budget; 

 Travel - £120 
The roles will be voluntary; however, travel expenses will be paid.  
Once the make-up of the board is known the travel budget can be 
more accurately estimated, plus there is the option to move the 
meeting to different locations to minimise travel expenses (although 
that will be offset by a hire cost). 

 Interpretation - £270 
As a minimum there will be a Welsh translator at every meeting, plus 
access interpreters will be available where required. 

 Tea and Coffee - £10 

 Room hire - £100 
As outlined above, Room Hire may not be a necessary cost, however, 
AAC have advised that they have found it useful to hold at least one 
meeting ‘outside the Aberystwyth bubble’. 

 
The total meeting budget would be £500.  As this is part of the development work of 

Page 8



BMI, the Advisory Group would be funded from the Arts Council of Wales annual 
grant in the first instance. However, it should be noted that the Advisory Group is a 
necessary tool for growth, therefore if the Arts Council of Wales grant were ever to be 
withdrawn, consideration should be given to funding the Advisory Group from core 
BMI funding.  The belief is that the group will benefit the income generation of BMI 
and therefore offset its own costs. 

 
 
5.15 Proposed discussion points are: 

 The business plan and reducing the Council’s subsidy. 

 BMI’s co-production and artistic output. 

 Community engagement. 

 BMI’s programme. 

 Participation. 

 Promotion of the Welsh Language. 

 Accessibility at Blackwood Miners’ Institute. 
 

These are only initial suggestions, and there is scope for the Cabinet as Trustees to 
influence this. 

 
5.16 If approved the Terms of Reference for Members and advertisement to recruit would 

need to be finalised to enable recruitment to take place.  Recruitment take around 4 
weeks therefore the first group meeting should be scheduled for 10 weeks from the 
point of approval. 
 

5.17 The group is intended to support and work in conjunction with Cabinet as Trustees.  
By having the Cabinet Member for Customer, Performance and Enterprise involved 
with the Advisory group it provides a tangible link, meaning that neither party are 
working in isolation.  Minutes from each meeting would be fed back to Cabinet as 
Trustee at the subsequent Cabinet as Trustee meeting. 

   
 

 Conclusion   

5.18 BMI is beginning its post-Covid recovery period.  This Continues to be a difficult year 
for the industry, and as venues and companies rebuild their audiences, BMI is no 
different.  Despite the challenges, BMI is still committed to reducing its subsidy.  

5.19 In light of the pressures of Covid recovery, an Advisory Group is even more important 
as a tool for support and advice. 
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 It is assumed that beyond the Covid crisis financial pressures on local authority 

budgets will continue, which will require an ongoing focus on reducing the subsidy 
that BMI receives from the Council.  Therefore, the need for BMI to evolve to 
increase audiences and operational efficiency remains a high priority. 

 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 It is considered that an Advisory Group will have a positive impact on the 

development, growth and resilience of Blackwood Miners’ Institute.  A stronger 
Blackwood Miners’ Institute means that it can deliver on the Council’s Well-being 

Page 9



objectives and The Well-Being of Future Generations Act objectives and ways of 
working.  The group itself presents opportunities for diversity, the promotion of the 
Welsh language and developing employability skills.   There is precedent from other 
organisations that shows this model can be a success, and it is a reasonable 
assumption that this success can be replicated at BMI with good management and 
monitoring. 

 
An Integrated Impact Assessment has been carried out to ensure that no-one will be 
adversely affected by the establishment of an Advisory Group. 
 

 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The forecast for 2020/21 is an £12,060 overspend, predominantly due to the loss of 

income for the start of the financial year.  
 
8.2 Audience and programme development continue to be a priority to reduce the 

subsidy that BMI receives from the Council. 
 
8.3 The Advisory Group will have a maximum budget of £1500 per year which will initially 

be funded from ACW grant. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The positions of Theatre and Arts Services is a crucial for the growth of Blackwood 

Miners’ Institute, therefore it is imperative that appointments are made as soon as 
possible.  The role of Sales and Audience Development Manager is also an intrinsic 
role, so the review of the job description must be an efficient process to prevent any 
unnecessary delay in recruitment. 

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The comments from consultees are included in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Charities Act 2011, Local Government Act 1972 and the Trustees Act 1925. 
 
 
Author: Marina Newth, Theatre and Arts Services Manager 

newthm@caerphilly.gov.uk (until 15th October) 
 
Consultees: Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Customer, Performance and 

Enterprise – stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Stephen Harris - Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer – 
harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk  
Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer – 
trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk  
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services – donoval@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Dave Roberts, Principle Group Accountant– roberda@caerphilly.gov.uk 

                       Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning – kyter@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager – dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk 

Page 10

mailto:newthm@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk


Antony Bolter, Visitor Economy and Destinations Manager – 
boltea@caerphilly.gov.uk 

 

Page 11

mailto:boltea@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a gynhaliwyd ar 27 Ionawr 2021.
	4 Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon - Adroddiad Diweddaru.

